IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 99-40860

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,
Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,
VS.
MODESTO RAM REZ,

Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of Texas
USDC No. L-98-CR-620-3

Oct ober 31, 2000
Bef ore REAVLEY, BENAVIDES and DENNIS, G rcuit Judges.
PER CURI AM *

Modest o Ram rez appeal s his conviction on one count of
conspiracy to possess in excess of 1000 kil ograns of marijuana
with intent to distribute in violation of 21 U S. C. 88 846,
841(a) (1) and 841(b)(1)(A), and on one count of possession with
intent to distribute 416 pounds of marijuana in violation of 21
U S.C. 8§ 846, 841(a)(1l) and 841(b)(1)(B) and 18 U.S.C. § 2.

Ram rez argues that the evidence was insufficient to support his

conviction on either count. W disagree and AFFIRM hi s

" Pursuant to 5"fH QR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opinion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5™ QR R 47.5. 4.



convi ction.

This Court reviews a claimof insufficient evidence to
determ ne whether a rational trier of fact could have found that
the evidence proved the essential elenents of the crine beyond a

reasonabl e doubt. dasser v. United States, 315 U. S. 60, 80, 62

S.Ct. 457 (1942); United States v. Ramrez, 145 F.3d 345, 350
(5" Cir. 1998). The evidence, both direct and circunstantial,
and all inferences reasonably drawn fromit, is viewed in the

light nost favorable to the jury's verdict. United States v.

Resi o-Trejo, 45 F.3d 907, 910 (5'" Gr. 1995).

To prove a drug conspiracy, the Governnent must establish
“1l) the existence of an agreenent between two or nbre persons to
violate federal narcotics |aws; 2) the defendant’s know edge of
the agreenent; and 3) the defendant’s voluntary participation in

the agreenent.” United States v. Gonzales, 79 F.3d 413, 423 (5"

Cir. 1996). The CGovernnment produced anpl e evidence, through the
testi nony of Osval do Serrano Martinez and CGeorgi Kirilov, of a
conspiracy to distribute illegal narcotics. Each testified that
they had transported drugs for Roberto Ramirez and Frank
Her nandez, two charged conspirators. Martinez further testified
to conversations regardi ng drug shipnments that he overheard while
wor ki ng construction at the hone of charged conspirator Jose
Ram rez.

Mere presence or association with conspirators alone wll
not support an inference of participation in the conspiracy,
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United States v. Maltos, 985 F.2d 743, 746 (5'" Gir. 1992), there

must be sone further evidence fromwhich the jury could infer the
def endant’ s knowl edge and participation. 1d. at 748. In this
case, Esneraldo Guerra testified that Ramrez, during a
conversation with other truck drivers followng the arrest of
Ceorgi Kirilov, had stated that “they had set up Georg
[ and] sonething el se had gone through.” The governnent then
call ed Agent Butler to inpeach GQuerra’s testinony that the
remarks were nerely idle conversation, or gossip, between
drivers. Regardless of the context in which the statenents were
made, they are consistent with the governnent’s theory at trial
that the conspirators would “set up” an individual transporting a
relatively small |oad of marijuana, so a larger |oad could pass
t hrough undetected. |t would not have been unreasonable for the
jury to infer that the statenents described by Guerra evinced
Ram rez’ s invol venent in and know edge of the conspiracy.

Count Three of the indictnent charged that Jose and Moddesto
Ram rez, *“aiding and abetting each other,” possessed with intent
to distribute 416 pounds of marijuana. On Septenber 14, 1993,
out side the hone of Juan Gerardo Sanchez, police seized a
tractor-trailer containing seven duffel bags filled with
marij uana. Sanchez had been hired to drive the trailer to
California. The governnment presented significant circunstanti al
evi dence pl aci ng Mbdesto at the scene when the marijuana was
| oaded into the trailer. First, Mdesto had delivered the
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trailer to Sanchez’s hone. After which, a witness reported
seeing several nen in a white Cadillac and a white El Cam no

| oadi ng sonething into the trailer. A later governnent w tness
testified to seeing Mddesto driving a white EIl Cam no on several
occasions. Mddesto’'s brother-in-law, Valentine Espinoza, owned a
white Cadillac. Espinoza’'s wfe, Mdesto' s sister, testified
that on the night in question Valentine and Modesto were supposed
to be together. Mdesto also turned in a false |og book show ng
t hat he was supposedly between El oy, Arizona and Buckeye, Arizona
on the night the | oading took place. Fuel records, however,
showed that he was in fact in Laredo, Texas. This false

assertion is probative of Mddesto' s guilty know edge. See United

States v. Meyer, 733 F.2d 362, 363 (5'" Cir. 1984) (stating that

“[f]al se excul patory statenents may be used . . . as substantive
evidence tending to prove guilt”). The evidence is sufficient to
show Mbdest o’ s constructive possession of the marijuana, see

United States v. Jones, 133 F.3d 358, 362 (5'" Gr. 1998), and

the large quantity of marijuana involved in this case is

sufficient to establish the intent to distribute. Uni ted States

v. Sanchez, 961 F.2d 1169, 1176 (5'" Cir. 1992). W, therefore,

AFFIRM the conviction in its entirety.!?

! Believing the evidence is insufficient to support Ramrez's
conspi racy conviction, Judge Dennis would reverse the conviction
under Count 2 of the indictnent. As to the substantive count,
Judge Dennis joins the opinion of the Court.
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